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Background

The Roosevelt Island Operating Corporation of the State of New York ("RIOC") is a public
benefit corporation and a political subdivision of the State of New York. RIOC was created by
the New York State legislature, in 1984, to take responsibility, pursuant to a General
Development Plan (GDP), for the development and operation of the 147 acres comprising the
former Welfare Island, located in New York City's East River. RIOC assumed the role of the
New York State Urban Development Corporation as lessee under a 99-year Master Lease
(running until 2068) from the City of New York.

The GDP, which has been amended from time to time, provides for the development of housing,
shops and community facilities for a mixed income, handicap accessible, residential
neighborhood. As an island community, Roosevelt Island requires specialized operations and
capital infrastructure maintenance such as an aerial tramway, comprehensive garbage
compacting system and seawall improvements. RIOC supplements the very basic services
provided by the City of New York, and provides specialized operations and capital
improvements.

Pursuant to its enabling legislation, the RIOC Board of Directors is composed of nine members
including the Commissioner of the New York State Division of Housing and Community
Renewal, who serves as the chair; the New York State Director of the Budget; and seven public
members nominated by the Governor of the State of New York with the advice and consent of
the New York State Senate. Of the seven public members, two members are recommended by
the Mayor of New York City, and five members must be residents.

I. Mission Statement

Created by the State of New York as a public benefit corporation, it is the mission of the
Roosevelt Island Operating Corporation to plan, design, develop, operate, maintain and manage
Roosevelt Island.

Public Benefit

The Corporation is a political subdivision of the State of New York and additional stakeholders
include the City of New York, residents, students, developers and commercial operators, workers
and visitors to Roosevelt Island (the “Island”). The Corporation’s stakeholders benefit from the



development and preservation of properties and open spaces, as well as sharing in the economic
growth of the Roosevelt Island community.

The Roosevelt Island Operating Corporation accomplishes its mission by practicing the
following core values:

Service

We are committed to providing services that enhance the Island’s mixed-use residential
community, including public transportation, public safety, public works and parks and
recreation.

Preservation

The Corporation promotes the preservation, enhancement, and sustainable use of the
Island’s historical landmarks and other structures and open spaces.

Environmental Responsibility

All new development, as well as maintenance of parks, public spaces, and other
property under the Corporation’s stewardship strives to employ the latest, cost-effective,
high-performance environmental designs and techniques available.

Public Safety

We are committed to protecting and serving the community by providing a safe and
secure environment and enforcing local, State and Federal laws.

Communication and Transparency

We are committed to effectively communicating with our stakeholders and undertake to
be open, honest and accountable in our relationships with everyone we work with and
with each other.

Fiscal Responsibility

We are committed to managing the Corporation’s resources with fiscal responsibility and
efficiency through a single comprehensive process that is aligned with the Corporation’s
strategic plan, without reliance on State subsidies.

Innovation

We thrive on creativity and ingenuity and strive to employ new, unique and innovative
solutions to accomplish our mission.

Partnerships

We strive to develop strategic partnerships with commercial enterprises, nonprofit
organizations and institutions in the public and private sectors to meet the needs of our
stakeholders and carry out our mission.

Governance

The Corporation ensures good governance through compliance with its enabling
legislation, corporate By-laws, General Development Plan, contractual obligations and all
applicable Federal, State, and local laws.

Date Adopted: December 14, 2011



I. (i) Performance Goals:

e To promote, develop, and maintain the mixed-income residential community on
Roosevelt Island.

e To provide an appropriate level of services to develop and maintain public facilities, open
spaces and commercial facilities.

e To ensure good governance through compliance with its enabling legislation, corporate
By-laws, General Development Plan, contractual obligations and all applicable Federal,
State, and local laws.

e To manage the Corporation’s resources with fiscal responsibility and efficiency through a
single comprehensive process that is aligned with the Corporation’s strategic plan and to
continue to operate without reliance on State subsidies.

e To provide a safe environment for the public and the Corporation’s employees.

e To maintain and enhance the physical conditions of the Corporation’s public facilities
and open spaces.

e To promote a sustainable, innovative environment and to strive for island-wide green
initiatives.

e To effectively communicate with all stakeholders.

e To partner with businesses, industry leaders and other government agencies to meet the
needs of the Corporation’s stakeholders.

I. (if) Performance Measurement Report
See Attachment “A”’
Il. OPERATIONS AND ACCOMPLISHMENTS

On December 14, 2011, The Board of Directors approved the Corporation’s Budget FY
2012/2013 & Five Year Cash Projection reflecting a projected “Operating Profit before
Depreciation of $3,202,745 and an Operating Deficit after depreciation of ($374,255)” and
“Capital Expenditures for the Five Years Ending March 31, 2017” of $43,043,000.

The Modernized Tram, which was placed in service on November 31, 2010, now better meets
the transportation needs of the residents and visitors: more passengers are shuttled quickly and
safely; there is greater availability - the system allows for one cabin to continue operations while
the other is down for preventive maintenance; and it is more reliable with redundant generators
to power the system. As a result of these increased efficiencies and capabilities, rider-ship on the
Tram is increasing. During the fiscal year ended March 31, 2013, Tramway revenue exceeded



the budget by $493,843 or 12% (see Budget variance report - page 31). The infrastructure
improvement was funded by a $15 million grant from the State of New York and $10 million
from RIOC.

The Franklin D. Roosevelt Four Freedoms State Park (“Park”), located at the southern tip of the
island, was completed on October 17, 2012. The Park cost approximately $43,523,002. The
majority of the funding came from private funds raised by Franklin D. Roosevelt Four Freedom
Park, LLC, which is now a subsidiary of the Four Freedoms Park Conservancy, Inc. The State
and City of New York provided $6,000,000 and $13,588,000; respectively, toward the
construction of the Park; and the Federal government provided $501,609. The remaining funds
came from private sources. At the commemoration of the Park, Governor Andrew Cuomo
announced that the Park would be part of the New York State Park System. The New York
Times has lauded the Park as the “spiritual heart” of New York City, and to date the Park has
seen over 40,000 visitors and an increased visitorship to Roosevelt Island.

The development of Southpoint Park is completed; the park is now open to the public. The
$13,300,000 project was funded by appropriations from the City of New York for $4,500,000,
the State of New York for $4,400,000, and $4,400,000 from RIOC. The park significantly
enhances the availability of vibrant open space to the community, while naturally benefiting in
usage from the scores of visitors that the aforementioned Franklin D. Roosevelt Four Freedoms
Park is attracting.

The revitalization of Main Street and improvement of the retail businesses are in progress. On
August 1, 2011, RIOC entered into a Master Sublease Agreement with Hudson Related Retail
LLC (HRR) to redevelop, improve, market, lease and professionally operate the Retail Spaces
controlled by RIOC. RIOC receives an annual guaranteed rent of $900,000 - escalating by 2%
annually beginning on the first anniversary of the Commencement Date for the first five years
and 2.5% annually thereafter - as well as participation in the profits of the Master Sub-lessee.
According to its” certified financial statements as of December 31, 2012, Hudson Related Retail
LLC invested $636,436 and incurred a loss of ($320,279). According to the agreement, RIOC
will share future profits 50/50 once HRR is paid back its investment.

On September 28, 2012, RIOC entered into a lease modification with Northtown Phase 11 Houses
Inc. (the “Housing Company”) — one of four Mitchell-Lama housing projects built on the Island
— to extend the term of its” ground lease until December 22, 2068. During the term of the lease,
the Housing Company will exit Mitchell-Lama and pursue an affordable home ownership plan
whereby at least 65% of the 400 residential units (260 units) will either be restricted price
cooperative apartments or affordable rental units (the “Conversion”). The lease provides that the
Housing Company has three years from the date of the lease to execute the Conversion. Provided
that this takes place, the base ground rent will increase as follows: (a) the current base rent will
increase from $136,000 to $236,000 per annum — increasing by 10% on each 5™ anniversary for
30 years; (b) the Housing Company will pay a transfer fee due in connection with the initial sale
of each apartment equal to five percent (5%) of the unit’s gross sales price — but not to exceed
$4,500,000 in the aggregate; (c) for any resales following such initial sales the seller will be
obligated to pay RIOC one percent (1%) of the unit’s gross sales price. If the Conversion does
not take place and the building remains as an affordable rental, the base ground rent will increase



as of the date of the lease modification according to the aforementioned increase and escalation
schedule.

Roosevelt Island was affected by Hurricane Irene. Before and during the storm, RIOC staff took
measures to mitigate potential damage and to protect lives and property. Similarly, staff and
contractor labor was used immediately following the storm to clear the roads and open spaces of
debris and downed trees. Under Federal guidelines, these efforts were identified as eligible for
reimbursement by FEMA. The following projects to rehabilitate portions of the Island impacted
by Hurricane Irene were identified to FEMA and completed: (1) repairs were made to fencing
damaged by falling trees; (2) repairs were made to damaged stone benches and walkways; (3)
RIOC replaced safety mulch washed away from playgrounds; (4) streetlights adorning the open
space at Lighthouse Park were damaged. Currently, plans for mitigation and repair at the South
Point seawall are being designed by an engineering firm, and repairs are being made to several
hundred linear feet of the West Side Sidewalk. These ongoing projects have similarly been
identified to FEMA and are approved for reimbursement upon completion. The filing deadline
for the continuing projects has been extended to December 21, 2015. As work is completed, the
eligible costs are submitted to FEMA/OEM for review and approval. To date, RIOC has realized
$103,142 in construction and labor costs and is projected to incur an additional $1,405,052 — for
a projected total of $1,508,194. The receipt of the Federal share (75% of costs incurred in a
FEMA approved scope of work) is dependent upon RIOC’s outlay of cash for identified projects.
As the completed projects are reviewed and approved by FEMA/OEM, the Corporation will
receive the Federal share of the eligible costs as a reimbursement. Based on the projected total
expenditures of $1,508,194, RIOC will receive reimbursements totaling approximately
$1,131,145.

Similarly, the Island experienced damages caused by Hurricane Sandy during October 2012.
RIOC has preliminarily identified projects to FEMA, including but not limited to, repairs of the
Overlook Pier on the West Promenade, and foot bridges in Lighthouse Park. The projects are
under review by FEMA and OEM for eligibility under Federal guidelines. RIOC’s preliminary
estimates to undertake repairs and mitigate future damage total approximately $734,000. No
filing deadline will be established until the projects are deemed eligible.

Six (6) of the anticipated nine (9) buildings (“Buildings™) of the Southtown Development Project
have been completed. The developer, Hudson/Related Joint Venture and RIOC have come to
tentative terms for Buildings 7-9 as of the date of this report. Of the remaining Buildings, the
Building 7 Lease Closing needs to occur before July 31, 2013; the Building 8 Lease Closing
shall occur no later than 30 months after the Building 7 Lease Closing; and the Building 9 Lease
Closing shall occur no later than 30 months after the Building 8 Lease Closing. Should
development fail to occur within the expected timeframe, RIOC is protected by a letter of credit
in the amount of $1,420,800. RIOC believes that the development will occur as the economy
recovers and the housing market rebounds.

RIOC’s fifteen-year capital improvement plan provides a framework for the Corporation to
renew existing aged infrastructure, and maintain the quality of life for the Island’s residents,
workers, and visitors. The Corporation achieves this by making capital improvements and
strategically acquiring capital assets that support essential services such as transit, sanitation, and



public safety. Significant projects in the first five years include the installation of LED lighting in
the Motorgate Garage and repairs to its helix ramp, renovations of the Blackwell House interior,
and modernization of the west drive. Feature projects and acquisitions slated for the fifteen-year
period include: rehabilitation of the Island’s seawall, representing $21.6 million in estimated
expenditures; replacement of the railings at a cost of $3 million; $3.6 million toward maintaining
a state of good repair on the Island’s newly renovated aerial tramway; and $5.5 million toward
the purchase of hybrid-electric buses, supplementing the Corporation’s ability to continue
providing transportation services as its current fleet ages.

I1l. FINANCIAL REPORTS
I11. (i) Audited Financials.

The audited financial reports are attached — see Attachment “B”. Below is an overview of the
statement of revenue, expenses and changes in fund net assets, and the statements of assets.

RIOC’s statements of revenues, expenses and changes in fund net position are used to report
changes in the net position, including depreciation expense. Revenues reported here are based on
a standard of recognition whereby revenues are recorded when earned. The statements of
revenues, expenses and changes in fund net position detail program revenues by major source
and expenses by natural classification and indicate the change in net position.

RIOC’s total operating revenues for the year ended March 31, 2013 amounted to $21,869,710,
which includes $21,572,641 in revenues identified as program revenues and $297,069 of non-
program specific revenues, primarily interest income earned on investments and settlement of
insurance claimed. During the fiscal year ending March 31, 2013, operating revenues increased
by $1,022,807 or 5% over the last fiscal year. The increase in operating revenues is mainly
attributed to the Tramway revenue, which increased by $342,952 or 8%. The increase in the
Tramway revenue is due to increased rider-ships of the modernized tram system which provides
higher capacity, faster, safer and smoother rides, and no downtime. In addition, residential fees
increased by $233,121 or 27% primarily due to an increase in condo sales and transactions.
Also, commercial rent increased by $124,897 or 10% stemming from the assignment of the
commercial spaces to the master lease, which provided a steady stream of revenue. However,
interest income declined by $78,230 or 30% primarily due to the significant drop in the interest
rate.

RIOC’s total operating expenses were $21,664,826 in 2013 and $21,567,047 in 2012, including
depreciation of $3,424,513 and $3,436,043, respectively. For the fiscal year ending March 31,
2013, total operating expenses before depreciation increased by $109,309 or 1% over the last
fiscal year, which is due primarily to accruals for compensated absences.

The statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances using the modified accrual
basis, reported an increase of $204,884 to an ending balance of $80,275,589 at March 31, 2013.



STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
MARCH 31, 2013

2013 2012 % Change
Operating revenues:
Residential fees $ 1,111,441 $ 878,320 27%
Ground rent 9,356,679 9,174,109 2%
Commercial rent 1,421,038 1,296,141 10%
Tramway revenue 4,640,843 4,297,891 8%
Public safety reimbursement 1,673,097 1,613,297 4%
Transport/parking revenue 2,521,892 2,485,613 1%
Interest income 185,403 263,633 -30%
Other revenues 959,317 837,899 14%
Total operating revenues 21,869,710 20,846,903 5%
Operating expenses:
Personal services 10,008,395 9,795,206 2%
Insurance 1,137,448 1,061,546 7%
Professional and legal services 670,825 699,139 -4%
Management fees 4,074,439 4,072,518 0%
Telecommunications 115,623 115,029 1%
Repairs and maintenance 281,689 382,153 -26%
Vehicles maintenance 350,663 318,719 10%
Equipment purchases/lease 73,481 112,977 -35%
Supplies/services 1,051,650 1,039,350 1%
Other expenses 476,100 534,367 -11%
Total operating expenses excluding depreciati 18,240,313 18,131,004 1%
Operating income before depreciation 3,629,397 2,715,899 34%
Depreciation expenses 3,424,513 3,436,043 0%
Change in net position 204,884 (720,144) 128%
Capital contributions for stabilization
of Renwick Ruins 29,113 -100%
Total net position, beginning of year 80,070,705 80,761,736 -1%

Total net position, end of year $ 80,275,589 $ 80,070,705 0%




On RIOC’s statement of position at March 31, 2013, total assets of $114,038,559 exceeded total
liabilities of $33,762,970 by $80,275,589 (total net position). Total assets are comprised of
capital assets (e.g., buildings, machinery and equipment) totaling $68,724,541, cash and cash
equivalents totaling $40,740,110 and other assets of $4,573,908. Liabilities comprised of
accounts payable of $809,459, unearned revenues of $29,910,944, other post-employment
benefits of $2,382,670, and other liabilities totaling $659,897. Unearned revenues represent the
prepaid ground rent revenue received for the Southtown and Octagon development projects that
will be recognized over their respective lease terms. Of total net position, $10,450,427 is
available to be used to meet ongoing capital obligations. Additionally, $1,100,621 is available
for ongoing operational expenses.

STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION

013 2012 % Change
Current and other assets $ 45314018 $ 46,439,059 -2%
Capital assets, net 68,724,541 67,090,562 2%
Total Assets $ 114,038559 $ 113,529,621 0%
Liabilities $ 33,762,970 $ 33,458,916 1%
Net position
Investment in capital assets $ 68,724,541  $ 67,090,562 2%
Restricted for capital projects 10,450,427 11,113,352 -6%
Unrestricted 1,100,621 1,866,791 -41%
Total net position $ 80,275,589 $ 80,070,705 0%

I11. (ii) Grant and Subsidy Programs

Included in "Other Expenses” are expenditures for public purpose grants totaling $275,000 per
year for the years ended 2013 and 2012. The Roosevelt Island Youth Center was granted
$175,000 each year to help fund operating expenses. The remaining grants of $100,000 are
awarded to various Island-based not-for-profits that must apply each year and require Board
approval.

I11. (iii) Operating and Financial Risks

Roosevelt Island Operating Corporation is self-sustaining: it generates sufficient revenues from
long term ground and commercial leases — residential fees, ground rent, commercial rent, and
public safety fees; service fees from its Tramway and Bus Operations; and other revenues to
fully meet its operational expenses. Roosevelt Island Operating Corporation neither borrows
nor depends on appropriations and thus is minimally exposed to market, interest rate, and
economic risks.



The development agreement for Southtown buildings (“Buildings™) five (5) through nine (9)
between Hudson Related Joint Venture (“Developer”) and RIOC included a contingent de-
designation (cancellation of project or portion of) fee of $2,252,198. As of the date of this
report, Buildings five (5) and six (6) were completed within the agreed upon timeframe, and
resulted in the pro-rata reduction of the de-designation fee to $1,420,800. The agreement is
collateralized by a Guaranty Letter of Credit issued by Deutsche Bank Trust Company, NA in
the amount of $1,420,800 maturing on August 15, 2013, to be renewed annually. Of the
remaining Buildings, the Building 7 Lease Closing need to occur before July 31, 2013; the
Building 8 Lease Closing shall occur no later than 30 months after the Building 7 Lease Closing;
and the Building 9 Lease Closing shall occur no later than 30 months after the Building 8 Lease
Closing. In the event that the Developer fails to close a Building lease in accordance with the
foregoing schedule, except if due to RIOC, RIOC may draw the entire balance of the Guaranty
Letter of Credit and apply same at its sole discretion, and in addition thereto, at its sole option,
de-designate Developer for each such Building and for the remainder of the Building.

Should the development of Southtown buildings seven through nine not happen, Roosevelt
Island Operating Corporation projected cash reserves will be adversely affected. However,
RIOC believes that the development will occur as the economy recovers and the housing market
rebounds.

I11. (iv) Bond Ratings

Roosevelt Island Operating Corporation does not issue bonds.

I11. (v) Long-term Liabilities

11. (v)(a) Leases

Roosevelt Island Operating Corporation has agreements with four housing companies operating
on the Island to sublease commercial space occupied by the housing companies. Rent expense
for the years ended March 31, 2013 and 2012 approximated $86,000 per year

111. (v)(b) Unearned Revenue

As of March 31, 2013, unearned revenue in the amount of $29,910,944 reported in the
statements of net position represents amounts collected in advance for lease-related payments
related to subsequent fiscal years. These amounts will be recognized as income on an annual
basis over a period of the remaining fifty-seven years on the ground lease for the City of New
York expiring in 2068 under the accrual basis of accounting.



111. (v)(b) Unearned Revenue — (continued)

Balance at Balance at

Buildings April 01, 2012 Additions Anmortization  March 31, 2013
Octagon 2,687,360 (47,354) 2,640,006
Southtown Bldg #1 1,806,665 (31,836) 1,774,830
Southtown Bldg #2 1,723,950 (30,378) 1,693,572
Southtown Bldg #3 3,684,234 (64,920) 3,619,313
Southtown Bldg #4 4,803,418 (84,642) 4,718,777
Southtown Bldg #5 6,133,912 (208,087) 6,025,825
Southtown Bldg #6 9,441,306 (166,367) 9,274,939
Sportspark Field 157,074 163,683 (157,074) 163,683
Total $ 30437919 $ 163683 $ (690,657) $ 29,910,944

111. (v)(c) Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions

Roosevelt Island Operating Corporation provides continuation of medical coverage to
administrative, non-represented employees (those categorized as M/C) that retire at age 55 or
older with five (5) years of service with the Corporation or a combination of service with a
previous NYS public employer and a minimum of one (1) year service with RIOC. The
employee must meet the requirements for retiring as a member of the NYS Employees
Retirement System, and the employee must be enrolled in NYSHIP. The Corporation contributes
90% for employees and 75% for an employee’s spouse.

The Corporation provides certain health care benefits for retired employees. Substantially all of
the Corporation’s non-union employees may become eligible for these benefits if they reach the
normal retirement age, of the respective tier of the New York State Employees’ Retirement
System, while working for the Corporation. The Corporation, on an annual basis, accrues the
cost which represents the present value of these benefits to be paid over the estimated lives of the
retirees.

Total expenditures charged to operations for the years ended March 31, 2013 and 2012 amounted
to $457,950 and $461,412, respectively. At March 31, 2013, the liability for retired employees
included in non-current accrued fringe benefits amounted to $2,382,670

The Roosevelt Island Operating Corporation currently pays for post-retirement health care
benefits on a pay-as-you-go basis and has set aside assets in the amount of $2,382,670 to meet
this long term obligation.

IV. DEBT SCHEDULE

Roosevelt Island Operating Corporation does not issue debt and thus does not have any bonds
and notes outstanding.



V. COMPENSATION SCHEDULE

TOTAL

NAME TITLE SALARY COMPENSATION
Leslie Torres President/CEO $150,355 $78,544
Fernando Martinez VP Operations $140,000 $119,384
Donald Lewis VP General Counsel $139,994 $140,379
Steven G. Chironis VP /CFO $136,965 $137,341
Alexander Snedkov Director Engineering $105,000 $105,289
Michael Moreo Director IT $104,931 $24,503
W. Keith Guerra Director Public Safety $104,464 $104,751
Muneshwar Jagdharry ~ Controller $100,915 $101,192

V. (i) Biographical Information

Biographical information for all board members and specified employees are attached — see
Attachment “C”.

VI. PROJECTS

Roosevelt Island Operating Corporation did not undertake any Industrial Development Agency
Projects (IDA Projects).

RIOC’s fifteen-year capital improvement plan provides a framework for the Corporation to
renew existing aged infrastructure, and maintain the quality of life for the Island’s residents,
workers, and visitors. The Corporation achieves this by making capital improvements and
strategically acquiring capital assets that support essential services such as transit, sanitation, and
public safety. Significant projects in the first five years include the installation of LED lighting in
the Motorgate Garage and repairs to its helix ramp, renovations of the Blackwell House interior,
and modernization of the west drive. Feature projects and acquisitions slated for the fifteen-year
period include: rehabilitation of the Island’s seawall, representing $21.6 million in estimated
expenditures; replacement of the railings at a cost of $3 million; $3.6 million toward maintaining
a state of good repair on the Island’s newly renovated aerial tramway; and $5.5 million toward
the purchase of hybrid-electric buses, supplementing the Corporation’s ability to continue
providing transportation services as its current fleet ages.

VIl. REAL PROPERTY
V1. (i) Real Property Disposition
On September 28, 2012, RIOC entered into a lease modification with Northtown Phase Il Houses

Inc. (the “Housing Company”) — one of four Mitchell-Lama housing projects built on the Island
— to extend the term of its’ ground lease until December 22, 2068. During the term of the lease,



the Housing Company will exit Mitchell-Lama and pursue an affordable home ownership plan
whereby at least 65% of the 400 residential units (260 units) will either be restricted price
cooperative apartments or affordable rental units (the “Conversion”). The lease provides that the
Housing Company has three years from the date of the lease to execute the Conversion. Provided
that this takes place, the base ground rent will increase as follows: (a) the current base rent will
increase from $136,000 to $236,000 per annum — increasing by 10% on each 5™ anniversary for
30 years; (b) the Housing Company will pay a transfer fee due in connection with the initial sale
of each apartment equal to five percent (5%) of the unit’s gross sales price — but not to exceed
$4,500,000 in the aggregate; (c) for any resales following such initial sales the seller will be
obligated to pay RIOC one percent (1%) of the unit’s gross sales price. If the Conversion does
not take place and the building remains as an affordable rental, the base ground rent will increase
as of the date of the lease modification according to the aforementioned increase and escalation
schedule.

VII. (ii) Real Property Acquisition
Roosevelt Island Operating Corporation did not acquire any real property.

V1. (iii) Real Property Owned

Property Net Asset Value (1)
AVAC $ 1,067,267
Blackwell House $ 1,268,915
Boathouse $ 15,796
Eastwood $ 51,622
Good Shepherd Chapel $ 1,381,181
Island House $ 26,542
Lighthouse - (2
Minischools $ 914,835
Motorgate $ 4,324,284
Octagon - 2
Post Office $ 9,800
Renwick Ruins $ 4,235,076
Rivercross $ 29,381
Supermarket - Gristedes $ 35,085
Sportspark $ 124,179
Strecker Lab - 2
Steamplant $ 52,226
Tennis Bubble $ 740,132
Tramway $ 20,746,107
Westview $ 46,349

Total $ 35,068,776
Note:

(1) Fair Market Value is currently not available
(2) Historical Landmarks - undetermined



VIll. CODE OF ETHICS

As a New York State public benefit corporation, RIOC is vested with a public trust. In order to
promote and maintain governmental integrity, each officer, director, and employee of RIOC
must adhere to the standards and code of ethics set forth in the Code of Ethics approved by the
Board of RIOC on March 25, 2010 (see Attachment “D”) and in the State Code of Ethics and the
Ethics in the Government Act.

IX. ASSESSEMENT OF THE EFFECTIVENESS OF INTERNAL CONTROL
STRUCTURE AND PROCEDURES

This statement certifies that the Roosevelt Island Operating Corporation followed a process that
assessed and documented the adequacy of its internal control structure and policies for the year
ending March 31, 2013. We are currently developing corrective action plans to reduce any
internal control related risks.

X. ENABLING LEGISLATION

On September 4, 1984, The Roosevelt Island Operating Corporation (“RIOC”) was organized
pursuant to Chapter 899 of The New York Unconsolidated Law as a public benefit corporation to
take responsibility, pursuant to a General Development Plan (GDP), for the development and
operation of the 147 acres comprising the former Welfare Island, located in New York City's
East River — see Attachment “E”.

XI1. AUTHORITY AND ITS BOARD STRUCTURE
Pursuant to its enabling legislation, the RIOC Board of Directors is composed of nine members
including the Commissioner of the New York State Division of Housing and Community
Renewal, who serves as the chair; the New York State Director of the Budget; and seven public
members nominated by the Governor of the State of New York with the advice and consent of
the New York State Senate. Of the seven public members, two members are recommended by
the Mayor of New York City, and five members must be residents.
XI. (i) Board Committees

See Attachment “F”.
XI. (ii) Board Meetings and Attendance

See Attachment “G”.
XI. (iif) Major Authority Units

Roosevelt Island Operating Corporation is comprised of the following functional departments:
Administration, Finance, Human Resources, Information Technology, Legal,



Community Relations, Engineering, Public Safety, Island Operations, Grounds, Maintenance,
Warehouse, Bus Operations, Motor Pool, Parks & Recreation, Permits & Film, Sportspark.

XI. (iv) Number of Employees
Roosevelt Island Operating Corporation has 117 employees (96 F/T and 21 P/T).
XIl. CHARTER AND BY-LAWS
See Attachment “H”.
XI1l. MATERIAL CHANGES IN OPERATIONS AND PROGRAMS

Roosevelt Island Operating Corporation has not made any material changes to its operations
and/or programs.

XIV. FINANCIAL PLAN

XIV. (i) Current and Projected Capital Budget
See Attachment “I”.

XIV. (ii) Operating Budget Report — Actual vs. Budgeted
See Attachment “J”.

XV. BOARD PERFORMANCE EVALUATION

Pursuant to Public Authorities Law sections 2800(1)(a)(15), 2800(2)(a)(15), and section 2824(7),
the Annual Board of Directors Evaluations have been completed for the fiscal year.

XVI. NON-COMPETITIVE ACQUISITIONS

See Attachment “K”.
XVIl. MATERIAL PENDING LITIGATION
RIOC is a defendant in various lawsuits. In the opinion of RIOC’s legal counsel, these suits are
without substantial merit and should not result in judgments which in the aggregate would have a
material adverse effect on RIOC’s operations.
However, RIOC has a claim from the contractor for the modernization of the Roosevelt Island
Aerial Tramway for additional compensation in the amount of $18,794,956 (on top of the fixed

fee contracted price of $16,693,894) on account of various items of alleged extra work and
alleged interferences to its work. RIOC believes that these claims are without merit.



In addition, the contractor also claims a Contract Sum balance of $1,995,230 under the
Design/Build Agreement. The claimed Contract Sum balance is disputed by RIOC for reason of
various incomplete items of Work and contractor’s failure to return the Tramway to service

within the Contract Time.

The Corporation's legal counsel is reviewing these claims and has not yet formed an opinion on
these matters.
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Attachment A

RIOC Roosevelt Island Operating Corporation
Q___\_ Performance Measure Report

1. To promote, develop, and maintain the mixed-use residential community on Roosevelt Island.

Pursuant to the guidelines specified in the Roosevelt Island General Development Plan, the Roosevelt Island
Operating Corporation (“RIOC”) has promoted the development of approximately 4,960 units of housing, with
the expected development of an additional 540 units. Of the built out units of housing stock, approximately 53%
are currently affordable under Federal Section 8, NYS Mitchell-Lama, NYC Inclusionary Housing Programs or
qualifying units sold or rented as Middle Income Affordable Housing (see Figure 1 below).

Units Units . Current
Building Units Developed ToBe Total Units  Developed as Subsequently - Units Currently Percentage
Developed Converted To Affordable
Affordable Affordable
Market
Manhattan 1,107 1,107 222 222 20%
Park
Roosevelt 1,003 1,003 1,003 275 728 73%
Landings
The Octagon 500 500 100 100 20%
Island House 400 400 400 400 100%
Southtown 1,202 540 1,742 697 697 40%
Westview 371 371 371 371 100%
Rivercross 377 377 377 377 100%
Total: 4,960 540 5,500 3,170 275 2,895 53%

Note: Unit Counts and Percentages are Approximate Values.
Figure 1

Of the total 3,170 affordable units originally developed above, 2,151 units (68% of the affordable units) were
developed through the NYS Mitchell Lama (ML) program in the mid to late 70’s. The ML developers have the
option after twenty years to exit the program and convert to a market rate building. Roosevelt Landings
(formerly Eastwood) has exited the ML program whereby existing tenant rents will continue to be subsidized
but units that become vacant will convert to market rate. As of March 31, 2013, approximately 27% of the units
have been converted to market rate units. The ground lease for Island House was extended to 2068 under a 30
year affordable program that is expected not to take effect until sometime in 2015. At least 65% of the units will
either be sold as “affordable” CO-OPs or remain as affordable rentals. The remaining two ML buildings
(Westview and Rivercross) are in various stages of negotiations whereby a “30 Year Affordable Program” is
being sought in exchange for subsidized ground lease extensions.

Six (6) of the anticipated nine (9) buildings (“Buildings”) of the Southtown Development Project have been
completed. The developer, Hudson/Related Joint Venture and RIOC have come to tentative terms for Buildings
7-9 as of the date of this report. Of the remaining Buildings, the Building 7 Lease Closing needs to occur before
July 31, 2013; the Building 8 Lease Closing shall occur no later than 30 months after the Building 7 Lease
Closing; and the Building 9 Lease Closing shall occur no later than 30 months after the Building 8 Lease
Closing. Should development fail to occur within the expected timeframe, RIOC is protected by a letter of
credit in the amount of $1,420,800. RIOC believes that the development will occur as the economy recovers
and the housing market rebounds.
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2. To provide appropriate level of services which develop and maintain public facilities, open spaces,
and commercial facilities.

As part of its mission the Corporation has developed the 147-acre island by promoting public facilities
including a transit system, sanitary and safety departments, pedestrian walkways, open spaces, and a street
system. The initial planners promoted the development of a centralized parking facility, now referred to as the
Motorgate Garage, which currently provides 1,522 parking spaces. A fourth quadrant may be required as part of
development of buildings 7-9 in a nine building Southtown development project (buildings 1-6 having already
been completed) that would increase garage parking to approximately 2,000 parking spaces.

Following the Tram  Modernization Project, the Tram was back in  operation on
November 30, 2010 after being shut down for nine months. Tram station improvements are scheduled to be
completed by the end of 2013. The infrastructure improvement for the Modernization Project was funded
through a $15 million grant from the State of New York and $10 million from RIOC. This important
transportation mode shuttled approximately 2,400,000 riders this past fiscal year between Roosevelt Island and
Manhattan. The Tram operating net profit for the year amounted to $859,474.

The on-island mass transportation is serviced by a fleet of seven energy clean hybrid buses. The buses are all
wheel chair accessible and service the Island’s significant disabled population, as well as the rest of the
community.

Roosevelt Island has a public school, PS / IS 217, which currently has 410 students enrolled and The Child
School / Legacy High School, a government funded private school specializing in educating children with
special needs — serving approximately 300 students. The Island is also home to a branch of the New York
Public Library (“NYPL”), community center, and senior center.

A new significantly larger NYPL branch is expected for the Island. Final negotiations for a long-term lease are
in progress between NYPL and Hudson Related Retail, LLC. RIOC is hopeful construction will commence this
year.

RIOC promotes recreational activities and has developed the Sports Park complex, which contains a swimming
pool, full-size basketball court, ping pong room, and weight room. Open recreational spaces include Lighthouse
Park, Octagon Soccer Field, Octagon Pony Field, Capobianco Field, Firefighters Field and Southpoint Park.

The Four Freedoms State Park, a memorial to honor President Franklin D. Roosevelt located on the
southernmost tip of Roosevelt Island, opened in the fall of 2012. It has become a popular destination that has
attracted more than 40,000 visitors to the Island.

The infrastructure for basic utilities has been developed, and residential buildings are connected to the
Automated Vacuum (“AVAC?”) facility, an underground network of pipes that disposes of trash, eliminating the
need for the majority of curb-side pickup.

The revitalization of Main Street commercial corridor is in progress. On August 1, 2011, RIOC entered into a
Master Sublease Agreement with Hudson Related Retail LLC (HRR) to redevelop, improve, market, lease and
professionally operate the retail spaces controlled by RIOC. RIOC receives an annual guaranteed rent of
$900,000 - escalating by 2% annually beginning on the first anniversary of the Commencement Date for the
first five years and 2.5% annually thereafter - as well as participation in the profits of the Master Sub-lessee.
According to HRR’s certified financial statements as of December 31, 2012, it invested $636,436 and incurred a
loss of ($320,279) after payment of the annual guaranteed rent to RIOC. According to the agreement, RIOC will
share future profits 50/50 once HRR is paid back its investment.

2
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Roosevelt Island was selected by the City of New York for the future site of the Cornell/Technion Applied
Sciences Graduate School (Cornell). The project, which is projected to be built in three phases over a twenty
year period, will be built primarily on property that is currently controlled by the City. We expect the project to
have an indeterminate level of significant impacts on Island infrastructure, including but not limited to
substantial construction related to the project and an increase in the daily population by at least 5,000 new
residents. RIOC and Cornell are currently in discussions related to the short-term and long-term impacts the
school will have on the Island’s infrastructure, including cost sharing of selected capital projects. In addition to
the costs related to the Cornell Project, RIOC may incur substantial costs (and significant environmental risks)
from New York City’s concurrent closure of a large steam plant located on the island, which formerly served
the Goldwater Hospital Site (as well as Coler Hospital and several RIOC-owned facilities) and which the City
now proposes to abandon in place. RIOC may be able to shift some or all of these costs to a future developer of
the site and has issued a Request For Expressions of Interest (“RFEI”) to developers for the steam plant site.

As noted above, RIOC issued a RFEI to attract proposals for the adaptive reuse or redevelopment of the
approximately 56,000-square-foot site of the steam plant and adjacent land located on the Island. The steam
plant is on Tramway Plaza, adjacent to the east side of the Roosevelt Island Tram Terminal and the north side of
the Ed Koch Queensborough Bridge The purpose of the RFEI is to learn the types of reuse and redevelopment
plans that are both economically feasible and beneficial to the Roosevelt Island community and to assess the
interest of qualified developers. After a review of the proposals, RIOC may request detailed development
proposals from qualified developers in order to select a developer to enter into a long-term lease with RIOC for
the design, development, and operation of the proposed site.

The closure of the steam plant will also require heating upgrades to Sports Park, which relied on the plant. The
costs to upgrade the Sports Park heating system may be substantial; RIOC has recently engaged an engineering
firm to conduct an analysis of the heating and ventilation systems and other capital assets, including but not
limited to cursory overviews of the facility’s lighting, electrical, plumbing, and roofing systems. In addition to
determining the financial impact related to the closure of the steam plant, the study will identify the long-term
viability of each noted asset and include a cost analysis that can be utilized to maintain these assets in a state of
good repair.

The expected increase in traffic due to construction of Cornell has also precipitated the Corporation’s release of
a Request For Proposals (“RFP’) for the Roosevelt Island Bridge Helix Ramp, which was rehabilitated in 1987
and would not have been addressed for some years in RIOC’s capital plan. The purpose of the RFP is to solicit
the services of a qualified engineering firm to perform structural evaluation, corrective engineering, and design
services. A firm has been identified and approved by the RIOC Board — a contract for services is being drafted.

The Corporation has engaged a consultant to provide engineering design and marine permitting services for the
completion of the Southpoint Park (“SPP’") shorelines. Failures due to deterioration exist along both shores, and
the west shore seawall consists of a succession of different masonry construction types, ranging from cut granite
to large concrete blocks interspersed with eroded gaps. The eastern seawall, while in generally better condition,
does have some localized failures including but not limited to damage to some 100 linear feet that was breached
during Hurricane Irene; the portion damaged by the storm event has been approved by FEMA as a project for
disaster recovery funding. Public access to the shorelines is not practical until structural integrity is restored.
Moreover, loss of park area is beginning to occur as erosion penetrates beyond the wall breaches.

As noted above, Roosevelt Island was affected by Hurricane Irene. Before and during the storm, RIOC staff
took measures to mitigate potential damage and to protect lives and property. Similarly, staff and contractor
labor was used immediately following the storm to clear the roads and open spaces of debris and downed trees.
Under Federal guidelines, these efforts were identified as eligible for reimbursement by FEMA. The following

3
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projects to rehabilitate portions of the Island impacted by Hurricane Irene were identified to FEMA and
completed: (1) repairs were made to fencing damaged by falling trees; (2) repairs were made to damaged stone
benches and walkways; (3) RIOC replaced safety mulch washed away from playgrounds; (4) streetlights
adorning the open space at Lighthouse Park were damaged. Currently, plans for mitigation and repair at the
South Point seawall are being designed by an engineering firm, and repairs are being made to several hundred
linear feet of the West Side Sidewalk. These ongoing projects have similarly been identified to FEMA and are
approved for reimbursement upon completion. The filing deadline for the continuing projects has been extended
to December 21, 2015. As work is completed, the eligible costs are submitted to FEMA/OEM for review and
approval. To date, RIOC has realized $103,142 in construction and labor costs and is projected to incur an
additional $1,405,052 — for a projected total of $1,508,194. The receipt of the Federal share (75% of costs
incurred in a FEMA approved scope of work) is dependent upon RIOC’s outlay of cash for identified projects.
As the completed projects are reviewed and approved by FEMA/OEM, the Corporation will receive the Federal
share of the eligible costs as a reimbursement. Based on the projected total expenditures of $1,508,194, RIOC
will receive reimbursements totaling approximately $1,131,145.

Similarly, the Island experienced damages caused by Hurricane Sandy during October 2012. RIOC has
preliminarily identified projects to FEMA, including but not limited to, repairs of the Overlook Pier on the West
Promenade, and foot bridges in Lighthouse Park. The projects are under review by FEMA and OEM for
eligibility under Federal guidelines. RIOC’s preliminary estimates to undertake repairs and mitigate future
damage total approximately $734,000. No filing deadline will be established until the projects are deemed
eligible.

3. Toensure good governance through compliance with its enabling legislation, corporate By-laws,
General Development Plan, contractual obligations and all applicable Federal, State, and local
laws.

RIOC has set forth Investment Guidelines, Lobbying Guidelines, Procurement Guidelines, Guidelines
Regarding Acquisition and Disposal of Property, By-Laws, Policies for Senior Management, Travel Policies,
and Policies on Reporting Misconduct and Protection Against Adverse Personnel Action.

During the fiscal year RIOC was subject to a NYS Inspector’s General investigation. The investigation is
presently on-going and the Corporation intends to fully address all findings.

4. To manage the Corporation’s resources with fiscal responsibility and efficiency through a single
comprehensive process that is aligned with the Corporation’s strategic plan and to continue to
operate without reliance on State subsidies.

RIOC’s operating revenues were sufficient to meet its operating and capital needs for the 2012-13 fiscal year.
The Corporation reported an operating profit, before depreciation, of $3,629,397, a 13% amount in excess of the
amount budgeted. The capital budget is prioritized to match the Corporation’s strategic planning process and
revenues have produced reserve funds, which are invested for necessary development and maintenance without
relying on State subsidies. Further study is needed to determine the future impact of Cornell/Technion on the
operating and capital needs budgets.

5. To provide a safe environment for the public and the Corporation’s employees.

Roosevelt Island, having one of the lowest crime rates per capita in New York City, is serviced by an on-island
Public Safety Department (“PSD”) with support from the NYPD. The mission of PSD is to provide a safe and
secure environment for the residents, employees, business owners, community and visitors of Roosevelt Island.
PSD is a division of RIOC, and its Public Safety officers are the front-line problem solvers for the Roosevelt

4
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Island community. By working closely with the City Police Department’s 114" Precinct, with the Fire
Department and their Medical Services (EMS), PSD provides a 24-hour a day, seven-day-a-week presence on
the Island. The Corporation intends to place more emphasis on community-based policing and quality of life
Issues.

6. To maintain and enhance the physical conditions of the Corporation’s public facilities and open
spaces.

RIOC’s fifteen-year capital improvement plan provides a framework for the Corporation to renew existing aged
infrastructure, and maintain the quality of life for the Island’s residents, workers, and visitors. The Corporation
achieves this by making capital improvements and strategically acquiring capital assets that support essential
services such as transit, sanitation, and public safety. Significant projects in the first five years include the
installation of LED lighting in the Motorgate Garage and repairs to its helix ramp, renovations of the Blackwell
House interior, and modernization of the west drive. Feature projects and acquisitions slated for the fifteen-year
period include: rehabilitation of the Island’s seawall, representing $21.6 million in estimated expenditures;
replacement of the railings at a cost of $3 million; $3.6 million toward maintaining a state of good repair on the
Island’s newly renovated aerial tramway; and $5.5 million toward the purchase of hybrid-electric buses,
supplementing the Corporation’s ability to continue providing transportation services as its current fleet ages.
See attached Capital Plan.

7. To promote a sustainable, innovative environment and to strive for island-wide green initiatives.

To limit the congestion caused by excess traffic, RIOC provides bus services — utilizing 7 hybrid-electric buses
powered by ultra-low-sulfur diesel fuel, thereby limiting production of greenhouse gases. The Corporation has
also purchased compact electric vehicles to the extent possible to lessen dependence on fossil fuel utilizing
vehicles for light duty usage by employees. A feasibility study was conducted this fiscal year for the installation
of canopy solar panels above the Motorgate Garage. The study concluded that it would most likely not be
economically feasible at this time until such cost efficiencies could be attained.

8. To effectively communicate with all stakeholders.

Notices are posted in public view and on the RIOC web site for all Board of Directors meetings pursuant to the
NYS Open Meetings Law. The RIOC web site provides relevant information, such as community information
and information about the Corporation’s operations and finances. Advisories are also sent to subscribers
providing information about emergency situations, traffic/transportation advisories affecting the island,
community events, and additional noteworthy items. All of the notices, advisories, and the RIOC web site are
available to stakeholders.

9. To partner with businesses, industry leaders and other government agencies to meet the needs of
the Corporation’s stakeholders.

The fares for individuals riding the Aerial Tramway are collected on RIOC’s behalf via the Metro Card system
through a partnership with New York City Transit, which promotes the efficiency of the system by connecting
riders to the mass transit system of the greater urban area. The Master Sublease Agreement between RIOC and
Hudson Related Retail, LLC is a partnership that will promote utilization of the island’s commercial sector,
thereby increasing access to goods and services. The Tramway and commercial sector are available to
stakeholders.



The Roosevelt Island Operating Corporation (RIOC)
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS 2013/2014 (In Thousands)

5% inflation rate
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Approved Actual Approved | Projected Projected Projected Projected Projected Projected Projected Projected Projected Projected Projected Projected Projected Projected | Budgets
Budget Expenditures| Budget Budget Budget Budget Budget Budget Budget Budget Budget Budget Budget Budget Budget Budget Budget (2013 - 2027
2013 2013 2,014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 Total
1 | Sports Fields/Parks $420 $356 435 $631 $347 $365 $383 $402 $422 $443 $465 $489 $513 $539 $566 $594 $624| $7,217
Octagon Park - Comfort Station Rehab $60 60 $60|
Octagon Park - Tennis Court Resurfacing $60 60 $60)
Mediation Steps $0
504 Main Childrens Park $300 $300)
Miscellaneous Upgrades & Improvements - Reserve $300 315 $331 $347 $365 $383 $402 $422 $443 $465 $489 $513 $539 $566 $594 $624| $6,797|
2 | Historic & Landmark Structures $1,670 $897 1,280 $910 $221 $232 $243 $255 $268 $281 $295 $310 $326 $342 $359 $377 $396| $6,096
Blackwell House Interior renovation $800 800 $800)
Good Shepherd - HVAC $0
Good Shepherd - Roof Replacement $300 $0
Good Shepherd - Fagade Repointing 100 $100)
Good Shepherd - Interior Repairs/Doors $100 100 $100)
Good Shepherd - Alarm System $80 80 $80)
Blackwell Lighthouse Restoration $350 $700 $700)
Old Tram Cabins Restoration $40 $0
Miscellaneous Upgrades & Improvements - Reserve 200 $210 $221 $232 $243 $255 $268 $281 $295 $310 $326 $342 $359 $377 $396| $4,316
3 | Infrastructure Improvements $4,525 $775| 10,495 $14,120| $5,246 $1,783| $2,822| $1,913| $2,009| $2,109| $2,215| $2,326| $2,442| $2,564| $2,692| $2,827| $2,968| $58,531
Island-Wide Road Improvements - Reserve $800 600 $600 $200 $210 $221 $232 $243 $255 $268 $281 $295 $310 $326 $342 $359 $4,743
Island-Wide Z Brick Replacement - Reserve $100 105 $110 $116 $122 $128 $134 $141 $148 $155 $163 $171 $180 $189 $198 $208 $2,266
Good Shepherd Plaza - Pavement Replacement $0
Blackwell Park Plaza & Fountains 700 $700)
Blackwell Circle 200 $200)
36 Avenue Bridge Helix (Ramp) $1,250 2,500 $2,500
Seawall - Reserve $1,000 5,000 $5,000 $1,000f $1,050| $1,103| $1,158| $1,216] $1,276] $1,340] $1,407| $1,477| $1,551] $1,629| $24,207|
Seawall Railings Replacement $1,000 1,000 $1,000{ $1,000{ $1,000{ $1,000 $5,000
West Drive Modernization $2,000 $2,000
Steamplant Decommissioning $3,500[ $3,500 $7,000
Eastern Pier $1,500 $1,500
Site Amenities - Benches, Waste Receptacles - Res. $75 75 $79 $83 $87 $91 $96 $101 $106 $111 $116 $122 $128 $135 $141 $148 $1,618
Utilities Infrastructure Improvements - Reserve $100 105 $110 $116 $122 $128 $134 $141 $148 $155 $163 $171 $180 $189 $198 $208 $2,266
Sewer Upgrades - Reserve $200 210 $221 $232 $243 $255 $268 $281 $295 $310 $326 $342 $359 $377 $396 $416| $4,531
4 | Facilities & Offices $3,460 $790 7,930 $2,041 $673 $706 $741 $779 $817 $858 $901 $946 $994| $1,043| $1,095 $1,150( $1,208| $21,883
Motorgate Project Repairs Project $0
Motorgate Garage - Reserve 200 $210 $221 $232 $243 $255 $268 $281 $295 $310 $326 $342 $359 $377 $396 $4,316
Motorgate Atrium/Escalator/N.Elevators 600 $600|
Motorgate Under deck Lighting $750 $0
Motorgate Enclosed Phase 3 Air Shaft $80 $0
Motorgate Coat Level 3 Deck $320 $0
Motorgate Coat Roof Deck $0
Motorgate Fire Alarm Rehabilitation $40 $0
504 Main Street - Interior Demolition $250 $0
504 Main Street - Window/Door Replacement $250 $0
504 Main Street - ADA Elevator $250 $0
AVAC Stack Repairs $400 $400)
AVAC Interior Painting $300 $300)
AVAC Mechanical/Piping - Reserve $200 210 $221 $232 $243 $255 $268 $281 $295 $310 $326 $342 $359 $377 $396 $416 $4,531
Sportspark - HYAC $600 3,000 $3,000
Sportspark - Roof $600 $600|
Sportpark - Pool $120 120 $120]
Sportpark - New Flooring Squash/Ping Pong $40 40 $40)
Sportpark - Upgrade Locker Rooms $60 60 $60)
Sportspark - Facade Repointing $100 $100|
Sportspark Rehabilitiation - Reserve 100 $105 $110 $116 $122 $128 $134 $141 $148 $155 $163 $171 $180 $189 $198 $2,158
Warehouse/Bus Garage Rehabilitation $500 3,500 $3,500
Miscellaneous Facilities & Offices - Reserve 100 $105 $110 $116 $122 $128 $134 $141 $148 $155 $163 $171 $180 $189 $198| $2,158|
5 | Equipment & Vehicles $366 $98 324 $188 $152 $177) $1,159| $1,347| $1,289| $1,372| $1,346| $1,606| $1,568 $302 $218 $317 $324| $11,588
Admin - (2) GEMs (50% paid by NYPA) $25 $30 $35 $90)
Bus - Hybrid Buses $1,000f $1,050, $1,103| $1,158| $1,216] $1,276] $1,340 $8,142
Bus - F-350 Pickup $40 $60 $100)

Note: Capital Plan Including Actual Expenditures FY 2013



The Roosevelt Island Operating Corporation (RIOC)
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Approved Actual Approved Projected Projected Projected Projected Projected Projected Projected Projected Projected Projected Projected Projected Projected Projected | Budgets
Budget Expenditures| Budget Budget Budget Budget Budget Budget Budget Budget Budget Budget Budget Budget Budget Budget Budget (2013 - 2027
2013 2013 2,014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 Total

Bus - Sissor Lift 20 $20)
Engineering - Ford Escape $20 $26 $33 $59
P.S. - Ford Escapes $20 21 $22 $23 $24 $26 $27 $28 $30 $31 $33 $34 $36 $38 $40 $42 $453
P.S. - Segways $6 15 $6 $16 $7 $18 $7 $20 $8 $22 $8 $24 $8 $26 $9 $9 $203
P.S.-Gem 15 $11 $12 $14 $15 $16 $18 $20 $20 $141]

P.S. - (4) Substations (Tram/Lighthouse/Bridge/SP Park| $40 $0|

P.S. - Taser Equipment & Training 40 $40
Motorpool - (2) GEMS (50% paid by NYPA) $30 $40 $50 $120)
Motorpool - Aerial Truck Lift $70 $35 $45 $80)
Maintenance - Ford 350 $50 $0)
Grounds - Brush Chipper $60 45 $45)
Parks & Recreation- Ford Escape $20 $26 $33 $59
Parks & Recreation- Gym Equipment $10 15 $15)

IT - Servers $50 $55 $62 $70 $70 $307|

IT - Plotter $25 $28 $34 $87|

IT - Parking Meter Replacement $0|

IT - Software Upgrades $30 32 $33 $35 $36 $38 $40 $42 $44 $47 $49 $51 $54 $57 $59 $62 $680

IT - (2) Copiers/AV/Printers $20 $22 $24 $26 $29 $32 $35 $39 $39 $246)

IT - (20 PC Replacements) $20 21 $22 $23 $24 $26 $27 $28 $30 $31 $33 $34 $36 $38 $40 $42 $453

IT - Upgrade of Switches $22 $24 $26 $29 $32 $35 $40 $40 $248
Excavator 40 $40)

(2) Bobcats 30 $30)
Misc. Heavy equipment 30 $32 $33 $35 $36 $38 $40 $42 $44 $47 $49 $51 $54 $57 $59 $647|

6 | Special Projects $1,070 $100 370 $53 $55 $58 $61 $64 $67 $70 $74 $78 $81 $86 $90 $94 $99 $1,399
Admin - Islandwide Geographic Information System $250 $0|
P.S. - Island Wireless Security Camera System $600 100 $100]

IT - Off-Site Data Backup Recovery System $0|
Parking Management System $120 120 $120]
Parking Meters Replacement $100 100 $100]
Other - Special Projects 50 $53 $55 $58 $61 $64 $67 $70 $74 $78 $81 $86 $90 $94 $99 $1,079

7 | Lighting & Signage $40 $0 42 $44 $46 $49 $51 $54 $56 $59 $62 $65 $68 $72 $75 $79 $83 $906
Street Light Replacement $20 21 $22 $23 $24 $26 $27 $28 $30 $31 $33 $34 $36 $38 $40 $42 $453
Signage $20 21 $22 $23 $24 $26 $27 $28 $30 $31 $33 $34 $36 $38 $40 $42 $453]

8 | Tram $1,500| $1,055 1,500 $100 $80 $0 $700 $0 $100 $0 $0 $880 $275 $0 $0 $0 $0| $3,635
Tram - Security/Monitoring/Replacement Equipment $100 $150 $250]
Tram - Haul Rope Replacement $600 $750 $1,350
Tram - Sheve Liners Replacement $80 $100 $125 $305)
Tram - Other Equip. & Tools $0|
Tram - Electrical PLC Replacement $100 $130 $230)
Tram Modernization - Note A $1,500 1,500 $1,500

9 | Southpoint Park $0 $538 0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
TPL - Wild Rooms/Wild Gardens $0)

10 | Miscellaneous $500 $366 525 $551 $579 $608 $638 $670 $704 $739 $776 $814 $855 $898 $943 $990| $1,039| $11,329
Contingency $500 525 $551 $579 $608 $638 $670 $704 $739 $776 $814 $855 $898 $943 $990| $1,039] $11,329
TOTAL CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS $13,551 $4,974| 22,901| $18,637| $7,398] $3,977| $6,799| $5483| $5,732| $5,933| $6,135| $7,514| $7,122| $5,845] $6,039| $6,428| $6,741| $122,584

Note: Capital Plan Including Actual Expenditures FY 2013
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May 24, 2013

The Board of Directors )
Roosevelt Island Operating Corporation

Dear Board Members:

We have audited the Financial Statements of Roosevelt Island Operating Corporation
(“RIOC”) for the year ended March 31, 2013 and have issued our report thereon dated May 17,
2013 in which we have expressed an unqualified opinion.

During our audit, we became aware of certain other matters that are opportunities for
strengthening internal controls and operating efficiency. The Schedule of Findings and
Recommendations that accompanies this letter summarizes our comments and suggestions
regarding those matters. The findings and recommendations have been discussed with RIOC’s
management and their comments and responses have been incorporated in the report.
Responses that indicate corrective action has been taken have not been verified at this time, but
will be verified in the succeeding audit.

This communication is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of Directors

and management of RIOC, and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other
than these specified parties.

Doctes. Vallee Vsretrote ZYy”

Elmhurst, New York
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ROOSEVELT ISLAND OPERATING CORPORATION
(A Component Unit of the State of New York)

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATIONS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2013

I. CURRENT YEAR FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATIONS

1. Tramway Revenue

We noted that the New York City Transit Authority (NYCT) pays the corporation for the
use of the Roosevelt Island Aerial Tramway (“Tram”) based on $2.00 per swipe which
was the “base price” when the agreement took effect in 2004. The “base price” increased
to $2.25 in 2008 and to $2.50 in March 2013. We understand that the NYCT refused to
adjust the rate to be remitted to the company based on the prevailing rates because the
annual grant of $1M to NYCT from the New York City Council as provided in the
contract was never paid except for one year as explained by management.

Recommendation

We understand that management and the board of directors are aware of this issue. We
suggest that any decision on this matter be properly documented for future reference.

Management’s Response

We agree with the recommendation. Any decision made will be documented for future
reference.

2. Escrow Fund - $52,565.47

The Escrow fund amounting to $52,565.47 as of March 31, 2013 has been long
outstanding in the books of the Corporation, with transactions in recent years involving
only interest earned and bank charges. Furthermore, the supporting schedule shows only
two (2) names of intended beneficiaries for a total of $22,889.68. Moreover, the names
listed therein cannot anymore be contacted or their whereabouts are unknown to the
management, as explained by the finance department.

Recommendation

Management should verify the source and/or intended beneficiaries of the escrow fund
and determine proper disposition.

Management’s Response

We agree with the recommendation. Management will verify the source and/or intended
beneficiaries and will take appropriate action.
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ROOSEVELT ISLAND OPERATING CORPORATION
(A Component Unit of the State of New York)

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATIONS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2013
(continued)
Il. FOLLOW-UP ON PRIOR YEARS’ FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATIONS
2012

Bidding process

We reviewed the bidding process as part of review of internal control in connection with the
financial statements audit for the year ended March 31, 2012. We selected eight (8) samples
to test compliance with the prescribed process. Following are our findings and observations:

o Failure to issue Letters of Notification of Non- award/Award to non-winning vendors and
winning vendor, respectively, for one (1) sample;

e For two (2) samples, two (2) of the raters did not award points to a qualified WBE/MBE
vendor;

e For two (2) samples, one of the raters gave more points under the “cost’ criterion to a vendor
with higher cost proposal;

e For one (1) sample, the contract was awarded to the second lowest bidder (upon
disqualification of the previously winning bidder) instead of the second highest ranked bidder
without proper explanation for not choosing the latter.

o Forone (1) sample, three (3) out of the thirty-six (36) rating forms had the wrong totals;

o Forone (1) sample, three (3) out of the fifteen (15) rating forms did not have totals at all.

Recommendation

We recommend that the Corporation address the issues identified above.

Prior Year’s Management’s Response

We agree with the findings. To ensure that all procurement documents for every contract are
consistently filed in the procurement record, management will implement a Procurement
Document Checklist (“Checklist™). The Checklist is a chronological list of the procurement
documents necessary to substantiate the issuance of a contract.

At each step of the procurement process, the relevant procurement document will be gathered
and filed in the designated procurement records folder and so noted on the Checklist with the
date and initial of the procurement manager. Upon execution of the contract, the Checklist
will be submitted to the CFO and Comptroller for their review and approval.
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ROOSEVELT ISLAND OPERATING CORPORATION
(A Component Unit of the State of New York)

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATIONS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2013
(continued)

Prior Year’s Management’s Response (continued)

To ensure that rating points are consistently and fairly assigned to bidders for the pricing and
WBE/MBE criteria, management will compute the points based upon a statistical formula
that considers the range of the price difference between the lowest and highest bidder and the
utilization of WBE/MBE; respectively. The rate and ranking forms will be pre-filled with the
computed points and provided to the raters for their completion.

The procurement manager will check each rate and ranking form for completeness and
mathematical accuracy and summarize the rate and rankings. The procurement manager will
provide the rate and ranking summary and the supporting individual rate and ranking forms
to the CFO or Comptroller for their review and approval.

In the event that the lowest bidder was disqualified and another bidder was awarded the
contract, the procurement manager will so note on the Checklist and file the justification in
the procurement record. The CFO or Comptroller, upon their review of the Checklist, will
ensure that the justification is in place to support the award.

Status

Condition no longer exists. Management has implemented corrective measures soon after last
year’s report was issued.

2009

Information Technology

RIOC does not have a formalized disaster recovery plan or a business continuity plan in the
event of a major shutdown of its information technology systems. RIOC’s internal control
system relies heavily on information technology programs to support its fiscal and other
operations.

Recommendation

We recommend that management implement a disaster recovery plan and a business
continuity plan.
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ROOSEVELT ISLAND OPERATING CORPORATION
(A Component Unit of the State of New York)

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATIONS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2013
(continued)

Prior year’s Management’s Response

RIOC has completed the information gathering phase to implement this recommendation,
including information about the pertinent services and systems required. The Corporation has
created a Request For Proposals ("RFP™) for the purpose of soliciting proposals
from qualified vendors, which management expects to advertise to the public prior to the end
of May 2012. The vendor will be selected based uponthe Corporation's standard
procurement guidelines. The award of a contract for services will be made at the earliest
possible juncture to implement this recommendation.

Status

The corporation has just recently completed the bidding process and awarded the contract to
a vendor for the project.
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DADIA VALLES VENDIOLA LLP New York Office

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

The Board of Directors
Roosevelt Island Operating Corporation

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Roosevelt Island Operating Corporation
(*RIOC”), a component unit of the State of New York, as of and for the years ended March 31,
2013 and 2012, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the
RI1OC’s financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation
and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We
conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we
plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the RIOC’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of RIOC’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no
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such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating
the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
net position of Roosevelt Island Operating Corporation as of March 31, 2013 and 2012, and the
respective changes in net position and cash flows for the years then ended, in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
management’s discussion and analysis on pages 4 through 11 be presented to supplement the basic
financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is
required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part
of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational,
economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the
information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our
inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the
basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the
information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an
opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements that
collectively comprise RIOC’s basic financial statements. The accompanying schedules listed in the
Table of Contents under the heading of Supplemental Information, which are the responsibility of
management, are presented for the purpose of additional analysis and are not a required part of the
basic financial statements. Such information, except for the portion marked “unaudited”, was
derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the
basic financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in
the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing
and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to
prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other
additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to
the basic financial statements as a whole. The information marked “unaudited” has not been
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and,
accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on it.

2
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Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated May 17,
2013, on our consideration of RIOC’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, grant agreements and other
matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on
internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering RIOC’s internal
control over financial reporting and compliance.

Dncteo. Vallelforstrote ZYy”

Elmhurst, New York
May 17, 2013
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ROOSEVELT ISLAND OPERATING CORPORATION
(A Component Unit of the State of New York)

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
March 31, 2013 and 2012

The following management’s discussion and analysis (MD&A) provides a comprehensive overview
of the financial position of Roosevelt Island Operating Corporation at March 31, 2013 and 2012,
and the results of its operations for the years then ended. Management has prepared the financial
statements and related footnote disclosures along with this MD&A in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles as defined by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board for
state and local governments. This MD&A should be read in conjunction with the audited financial
statements and accompanying notes to financial statements, which directly follow the MD&A.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This annual financial report consists of three parts: management’s discussion and analysis (this
section), basic financial statements, and supplemental information. RIOC was created by the New
York State Legislature in 1984 as a public benefit corporation charged with maintaining, operating,
and developing Roosevelt Island. RIOC follows enterprise fund reporting; accordingly, the financial
statements are presented using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of
accounting. Enterprise fund statements offer short and long-term financial information about the
activities of the Corporation. These statements are presented in a manner similar to a private
business. While detailed sub-information is not presented, separate accounts are maintained for each
fund to control and manage transactions for specific purposes and to demonstrate that RIOC is
properly performing its contractual obligations.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE CORPORATION
NET POSITION

The following is a summary of the RIOC’s statement of net position at March 31, 2013 and 2012
and the percentage changes between March 31, 2013 and March 31, 2012:

2013 2012 % Change

Current and other assets $ 45314018 $ 46,439,059 -2%
Capital assets, net 68,724,541 67,090,562 2%
Total assets $ 114,038,559 $ 113,529,621 0%
Liabilities $ 33,762,970 $ 33,458,916 1%
Net position:

Investment in capital assets 68,724,541 67,090,562 2%

Restricted for capital projects 10,450,427 11,113,352 -6%

Unrestricted 1,100,621 1,866,791 -41%
Total net position $ 80,275589 $ 80,070,705 0%
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ROOSEVELT ISLAND OPERATING CORPORATION
(A Component Unit of the State of New York)

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
March 31, 2013 and 2012
(continued)

On RIOC’s statement of net position at March 31, 2013, total assets of $114,038,559 exceeded total
liabilities of $33,762,970 by $80,275,589 (total net position). Total assets are comprised of capital
assets (e.g., buildings, machinery and equipment) totaling $68,724,541, cash and cash equivalents
totaling $40,740,110 and other assets of $4,573,908. Liabilities comprised of accounts payable of
$809,459, unearned revenues of $29,910,944 (prepaid rents), other post-employment benefits of
$2,382,670, and other liabilities totaling $659,897. Unearned revenues represent the prepaid ground
rent revenue received for the Southtown and Octagon development projects that will be recognized
over their respective lease terms. Of total net position, $10,450,427 is available to be used to meet
ongoing capital obligations. Additionally, $1,100,621 is available for ongoing operational expenses.

Short-term investments decreased by $1,744,460 or 4%. This was mainly due to purchases of
capital assets (infrastructure) totaling $5,058,492.

OPERATING ACTIVITIES

RIOC’s statements of revenues, expenses and changes in fund net position are used to report
changes in the net position, including depreciation expense. Revenues reported here are based on a
standard of recognition whereby revenues are recorded when earned. The statements of revenues,
expenses and changes in fund net position detail program revenues by major source and expenses
by natural classification and indicate the change in net position.

RIOC’s total operating revenues for the year ended March 31, 2013 amounted to $21,869,710,
which includes $21,572,641 in revenues identified as program revenues and $297,069 of non-
program specific revenues, primarily interest income earned on investments and settlement of
insurance claimed. During the fiscal year ending March 31, 2013, operating revenues increased by
$1,022,807 or 5% over the last fiscal year. The increase in operating revenues is mainly attributed to
the Tramway revenue, which increased by $342,952 or 8%. The increase in the Tramway revenue is
due to increased rider-ships of the modernized tram system which provides higher capacity, faster,
safer and smoother rides, and no downtime. In addition, residential fees increased by $233,121 or
27% primarily due to an increase in condo sales and transactions. Also, commercial rent increased
by $124,897 or 10% stemming from the assignment of the commercial spaces to the master lease,
which provided a steady stream of revenue. However, interest income declined by $78,230 or 30%
due to the significant drop in the interest rate.

RIOC’s total operating expenses were $21,664,826 in 2013 and $21,567,047 in 2012, including
depreciation of $3,424,513 and $3,436,043, respectively. For the fiscal year ending March 31, 2013,
total operating expenses before depreciation increased by $109,309 or 1% over the last fiscal year,
which is due primarily to accruals for compensated absences.
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(A Component Unit of the State of New York)

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
March 31, 2013 and 2012
(continued)
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The following summarizes RIOC’s change in net position for the fiscal years ended March 31, 2013

and 2012:
2013 2012
Operating revenues:
Residential fees 1,111,441 $ 878,320
Ground rent 9,356,679 9,174,109
Commercial rent 1,421,038 1,296,141
Tramway revenue 4,640,843 4,297,891
Public safety reimbursement 1,673,097 1,613,297
Transport/parking revenue 2,521,892 2,485,613
Interest income 185,403 263,633
Other revenues 959,317 837,899
Total operating revenues 21,869,710 20,846,903
Operating expenses:
Personal services 10,008,395 9,795,206
Insurance 1,137,448 1,061,546
Professional services and legal services 670,825 699,139
Management fees 4,074,439 4,072,518
Telecommunications 115,623 115,029
Repairs and maintenance 281,689 382,153
Vehicles maintenance 350,663 318,719
Equipment purchases/lease 73,481 112,977
Supplies/services 1,051,650 1,039,350
Other expenses 476,100 534,367
Total operating expenses excluding depreciation 18,240,313 18,131,004
Operating income before depreciation 3,629,397 2,715,899
Depreciation expenses 3,424,513 3,436,043
Change in net position 204,884 (720,144)
Capital contributions for stabilization of Renwick Ruins - 29,113
Net position, beginning of year 80,070,705 80,761,736
Net position, end of year 80,275,589  $ 80,070,705

% Change

27%
2%
10%
8%
4%
1%
-30%
14%
5%

2%
7%
-4%
0%
1%
-26%
10%
-35%
1%
-11%
1%

34%
0%
-128%
-100%
-1%
0%
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ROOSEVELT ISLAND OPERATING CORPORATION
(A Component Unit of the State of New York)

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
March 31, 2013 and 2012
(continued)
CAPITAL ASSETS

The following summarizes RIOC’s capital assets for the fiscal years ended March 31, 2013 and
2012 and the percentage change between fiscal years:

2013 2012 % Change

Seawall $ 2801889 $ 2,846,890 -2%
Buildings 12,913,630 12,451,326 4%
Land improvements 6,809,287 6,351,161 %
Machinery and equipment 2,467,171 3,001,922 -18%
Infrastructure 43,693,442 42,439,263 3%
Leasehold Improvements 39,122 - 100%

Net capital assets $ 68,724541 $ 67,090,562 2%

The capital assets of $68,724,541 presented in the financial statements have been depreciated using
the straight-line method, effective from the date of acquisition. The increase of $1,633,979
from the prior year represents additions of new capital assets valued at $5,058,492 less depreciation
expense of $3,424,513. Total depreciation expense for all capital assets amounted to $3,424,513 and
$3,436,043 for the years ended March 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively. A more detailed analysis of
RIOC’s capital assets is presented in the notes to financial statements on pages 19-20.

INFRASTRUCTURE ASSETS

The amounts reported in the accompanying statements of assets for the capital assets (net of
depreciation) of RIOC of $68,724,541 and $67,090,562 at March 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively,
do not include an amount for two infrastructure items: the bulk of the seawall, and Main Street (the
road). Pursuant to the provisions of Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement
No. 34, addressing the capitalization of infrastructure assets, infrastructure assets dating from prior
to 1980 are not required to be recognized. Improvements to such infrastructure items, however, are
reported.

ECONOMIC FACTORS AFFECTING RIOC’S FUTURE FINANCIAL POSITION

Six (6) of the anticipated nine (9) buildings (“Buildings”) of the Southtown Development Project
have been completed. The developer, Hudson/Related Joint Venture and RIOC have come to
tentative terms for Buildings 7-9 as of the date of this report. Of the remaining Buildings, the
Building 7 Lease Closing needs to occur before July 31, 2013; the Building 8 Lease Closing shall
occur no later than 30 months after the Building 7 Lease Closing; and the Building 9 Lease Closing
shall occur no later than 30 months after the Building 8 Lease Closing. Should development fail to
occur within the expected timeframe, RIOC is protected by a letter of credit in the amount of
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ROOSEVELT ISLAND OPERATING CORPORATION
(A Component Unit of the State of New York)

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
March 31, 2013 and 2012
(continued)

$1,420,800. RIOC believes that the development will occur as the economy recovers and the
housing market rebounds.

The Modernized Tram, which was placed in service on November 31, 2010, now better meets the
transportation needs of the residents and visitors: more passengers are shuttled quickly and safely;
there is greater availability - the system allows for one cabin to continue operations while the other
is down for preventive maintenance; and it is more reliable with redundant generators to power the
system. As a result of these increased efficiencies and capabilities, rider-ship on the Tram is
increasing. During the fiscal year ended March 31, 2013, Tramway revenue exceeded the budget
by $493,843 or 12% (see Budget variance report - page 34). The infrastructure improvement was
funded by a $15 million grant from the State of New York and $10 million from RIOC.

The Franklin D. Roosevelt Four Freedoms State Park (“Park™) located at the southern tip of the
island, was completed on October 17, 2012. The Park cost approximately $43,523,002. The
majority of the funding came from private funds raised by Franklin D. Roosevelt Four Freedom
Park, LLC, which is now a subsidiary of the Four Freedoms Park Conservancy, Inc. The State and
City of New York provided $6,000,000 and $13,588,000, respectively, toward the construction of
the Park; the Federal government provided $501,609. The remaining funds came from private
sources. At the commemoration of the Park, Governor Andrew Cuomo announced that the Park
would be part of the New York State Park System. The New York Times has lauded the Park as the
“spiritual heart” of New York City, and to date the Park has seen over 40,000 visitors and an
increased visitorship to Roosevelt Island.

The development of Southpoint Park is completed; the park is now open to the public. The
$13,300,000 project was funded by appropriations from the City of New York for $4,500,000, the
State of New York for $4,400,000, and $4,400,000 from RIOC. The park significantly enhances the
availability of vibrant open space to the community, while naturally benefiting in usage from the
scores of visitors that the aforementioned Franklin D. Roosevelt Four Freedoms State Park is
attracting.

The revitalization of Main Street and improvement of the retail businesses are in progress. On
August 1, 2011, RIOC entered into a Master Sublease Agreement with Hudson Related Retail LLC
(HRR) to redevelop, improve, market, lease and professionally operate the Retail Spaces controlled
by RIOC. RIOC receives an annual guaranteed rent of $900,000 - escalating by 2% annually
beginning on the first anniversary of the Commencement Date for the first five years and 2.5%
annually thereafter - as well as participation in the profits of the Master Sub-lessee. According to
its certified financial statements as of December 31, 2012, Hudson Related Retail LLC invested
$636,436 and incurred a loss of $320,279. According to the agreement, RIOC will share future
profits 50/50 once HRR is paid back its investment.

On September 28, 2012, RIOC entered into a lease modification with Northtown Phase Il Houses

Inc. (the “Housing Company”) — one of four Mitchell-Lama housing projects built on the Island —
to extend the term of its ground lease until December 22, 2068. During the term of the lease, the
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ROOSEVELT ISLAND OPERATING CORPORATION
(A Component Unit of the State of New York)

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
March 31, 2013 and 2012
(continued)

Housing Company will exit Mitchell-Lama and pursue an affordable home ownership plan whereby
at least 65% of the 400 residential units (260 units) will either be restricted price cooperative
apartments or affordable rental units (the “Conversion”). The lease provides that the Housing
Company has three years from the date of the lease to execute the Conversion. Provided that this
takes place, the base ground rent will increase as follows: (a) the current base rent will increase
from $136,000 to $236,000 per annum — increasing by 10% on each 5™ anniversary for 30 years;
(b) the Housing Company will pay a transfer fee due in connection with the initial sale of each
apartment equal to five percent (5%) of the unit’s gross sales price — but not to exceed $4,500,000
in the aggregate; (c) for any resales following such initial sales the seller will be obligated to pay
RIOC one percent (1%) of the unit’s gross sales price. If the Conversion does not take place and
the building remains as an affordable rental, the base ground rent will increase as of the date of the
lease modification according to the aforementioned increase and escalation schedule.

Roosevelt Island was selected by the City of New York for the future site of the Cornell/Technion
Applied Sciences Graduate School (Cornell). The project, which is projected to be built in three
phases over a twenty year period, will be built primarily on property that is currently controlled by
the City. We expect the project to have an indeterminate level of significant impacts on Island
infrastructure, including but not limited to substantial construction related to the project and an
increase in the daily population by at least 5,000 new residents. RIOC and Cornell are currently in
discussions related to the short-term and long-term impacts the school will have on the Island’s
infrastructure, including cost sharing of selected capital projects. In addition to the costs related to
the Cornell Project, RIOC may incur substantial costs (and significant environmental risks) from
New York City’s concurrent closure of a large steam plant located on the island, which formerly
served the Goldwater Hospital Site (as well as Coler Hospital and several RIOC-owned facilities)
and which the City now proposes to abandon in place. RIOC may be able to shift some or all of
these costs to a future developer of the site and has issued a Request For Expressions of Interest
(“RFEI”) to developers for the steam plant site.

As noted above, RIOC issued a RFEI to attract proposals for the adaptive reuse or redevelopment of
the approximately 56,000-square-foot site of the steam plant and adjacent land located on the
Island. The steam plant is on Tramway Plaza, adjacent to the east side of the Roosevelt Island Tram
Terminal and the north side of the Ed Koch Queensborough Bridge. The purpose of the RFEI is to
learn the types of reuse and redevelopment plans that are both economically feasible and beneficial
to the Roosevelt Island community and to assess the interest of qualified developers. After a review
of the proposals, RIOC may request detailed development proposals from qualified developers in
order to select a developer to enter into a long-term lease with RIOC for the design, development,
and operation of the proposed site.

The closure of the steam plant will also require heating upgrades to Sports Park, which relied on the
plant. The costs to upgrade the Sports Park heating system may be substantial; RIOC has recently
engaged an engineering firm to conduct an analysis of the heating and ventilation systems and other
capital assets, including but not limited to cursory overviews of the facility’s lighting, electrical,
plumbing, and roofing systems. In addition to determining the financial impact related to the closure
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ROOSEVELT ISLAND OPERATING CORPORATION
(A Component Unit of the State of New York)

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
March 31, 2013 and 2012
(continued)

of the steam plant, the study will identify the long-term viability of each noted asset and include a
cost analysis that can be utilized to maintain these assets in a state of good repair.

The expected increase in traffic due to construction of Cornell has also precipitated the
Corporation’s release of a Request For Proposals (“RFP”) for the Roosevelt Island Bridge Helix
Ramp, which was rehabilitated in 1987 and would not have been addressed for some years in
RIOC’s capital plan. The purpose of the RFP is to solicit the services of a qualified engineering firm
to perform structural evaluation, corrective engineering, and design services. A firm has been
identified and approved by the RIOC Board — a contract for services is being drafted.

The Corporation has engaged a consultant to provide engineering design and marine permitting
services for the completion of the Southpoint Park (“SPP”) shorelines. Failures due to deterioration
exist along both shores, and the west shore seawall consists of a succession of different masonry
construction types, ranging from cut granite to large concrete blocks interspersed with eroded gaps.
The eastern seawall, while in generally better condition, does have some localized failures including
but not limited to damage to some 100 linear feet that was breached during Hurricane Irene; the
portion damaged by the storm event has been approved by FEMA as a project for disaster recovery
funding. Public access to the shorelines is not practical until structural integrity is restored.
Moreover, loss of park area is beginning to occur as erosion penetrates beyond the wall breaches.

As noted above, Roosevelt Island was affected by Hurricane Irene. Before and during the storm,
RIOC staff took measures to mitigate potential damage and to protect lives and property. Similarly,
staff and contractor labor was used immediately following the storm to clear the roads and open
spaces of debris and downed trees. Under Federal guidelines, these efforts were identified as
eligible for reimbursement by FEMA. The following projects to rehabilitate portions of the Island
impacted by Hurricane Irene were identified to FEMA and completed: (1) repairs were made to
fencing damaged by falling trees; (2) repairs were made to damaged stone benches and walkways;
(3) RIOC replaced safety mulch washed away from playgrounds; (4) streetlights adorning the open
space at Lighthouse Park were damaged. Currently, plans for mitigation and repair at the South
Point seawall are being designed by an engineering firm, and repairs are being made to several
hundred linear feet of the West Side Sidewalk. These ongoing projects have similarly been
identified to FEMA and are approved for reimbursement upon completion. The filing deadline for
the continuing projects has been extended to December 21, 2015. As work is completed, the eligible
costs are submitted to FEMA/OEM for review and approval. To date, RIOC has realized $103,142
in construction and labor costs and is projected to incur an additional $1,405,052 — for a projected
total of $1,508,194. The receipt of the Federal share (75% of costs incurred in a FEMA approved
scope of work) is dependent upon RIOC’s outlay of cash for identified projects. As the completed
projects are reviewed and approved by FEMA/OEM, the Corporation will receive the Federal share
of the eligible costs as a reimbursement. Based on the projected total expenditures of $1,508,194,
RIOC will receive reimbursements totaling approximately $1,131,145.
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ROOSEVELT ISLAND OPERATING CORPORATION
(A Component Unit of the State of New York)

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
March 31, 2013 and 2012
(continued)

Similarly, the Island experienced damages caused by Hurricane Sandy during October 2012. RIOC
has preliminarily identified projects to FEMA, including but not limited to, repairs of the Overlook
Pier on the West Promenade, and foot bridges in Lighthouse Park. The projects are under review by
FEMA and OEM for eligibility under Federal guidelines. RIOC’s preliminary estimates to
undertake repairs and mitigate future damage total approximately $734,000. No filing deadline will
be established until the projects are deemed eligible.

RIOC’s fifteen-year capital improvement plan provides a framework for the Corporation to renew
existing aged infrastructure, and maintain the quality of life for the Island’s residents, workers, and
visitors. The Corporation achieves this by making capital improvements and strategically acquiring
capital assets that support essential services such as transit, sanitation, and public safety. Significant
projects in the first five years include the installation of LED lighting in the Motorgate Garage and
repairs to its helix ramp, renovations of the Blackwell House interior, and modernization of the west
drive. Feature projects and acquisitions slated for the fifteen-year period include: rehabilitation of
the Island’s seawall, representing $21.6 million in estimated expenditures; replacement of the
railings at a cost of $3 million; $3.6 million toward maintaining a state of good repair on the
Island’s newly renovated aerial tramway; and $5.5 million toward the purchase of hybrid-electric
buses, supplementing the Corporation’s ability to continue providing transportation services as its
current fleet ages.

REQUEST FOR INFORMATION

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of RIOC’s finances for all those with
an interest in the Corporation’s finances. Questions concerning any of the information provided in
this report, or requests for additional financial information, should be addressed to the Chief
Financial Officer, The Roosevelt Island Operating Corporation, 591 Main Street, Roosevelt Island,
New York 10044.
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THE ROOSEVELT ISLAND OPERATING CORPORATION

(A Component Unit of the State of New York)

Statements of Net Position
March 31, 2013 and 2012

Assets
Current assets
Cash
Short-term investments
Receivables
Prepaid expenses
Total current assets
Noncurrent investments
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation

Total assets

Liabilities and Net Position

Current liabilities - accounts payable and accrued expenses
Compensated absences

Unearned revenue

Postemployment benefits other than pension

Other liabilities

Total liabilities
Net Position:
Investment in capital assets
Restricted for capital projects
Unrestricted net assets
Total net position

Total liabilities and net position

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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2013 2012
$ 692,141 417,734
40,047,969 41,792,429
1,086,151 983,142
1,437,302 1,199,409
43,263,563 44,392,714
2,050,455 2,046,345
68,724,541 67,090,562

$ 114,038,559 113,529,621
$ 809,459 457,249
556,151 413,532
29,910,944 30,437,919
2,382,670 2,046,344
103,746 103,872
33,762,970 33,458,916
68,724,541 67,090,562
10,450,427 11,113,352
1,100,621 1,866,791
80,275,589 80,070,705

$ 114,038,559 113,529,621




THE ROOSEVELT ISLAND OPERATING CORPORATION
(A Component Unit of the State of New York)
Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
Years ended March 31, 2013 and 2012

Operating revenues:
Residential fees
Ground rent
Commercial rent
Tramway revenue
Public safety reimbursement
Transport/parking revenue
Interest income
Other revenues

Total operating revenues

Operating expenses:
Personnel services
Insurance
Professional services and legal services
Management fees
Telecommunications
Repairs and maintenance
Vehicles maintenance
Equipment purchases/lease
Supplies/services
Other expenses
Total operating expenses excluding depreciation

Operating income before depreciation
Depreciation expenses

Change in net position

Net position, beginning of year

Capital contributions for stabilization of Renwick Ruins
Net position, end of year

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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2013 2012
1,111,441 $ 878320
9,356,679 9,174,109
1,421,038 1,296,141
4,640,843 4,297,891
1,673,097 1,613,297
2,521,892 2,485,613

185,403 263,633
959,317 837,899

21,869,710 20,846,903

10,008,395 9,795,206
1,137,448 1,061,546

670,825 699,139
4,074,439 4,072,518
115,623 115,029
281,689 382,153
350,663 318,719
73,481 112,977
1,051,650 1,039,350
476,100 534,367

18,240,313 18,131,004
3,629,397 2,715,899
3,424,513 3,436,043

204,884 (720,144)

80,070,705 80,761,736

: 29,113
80,275,589  $ 80,070,705




The Roosevelt Island Operating Corporation
(A Component Unit of the State of New York)
Statements of Cash Flows
Years ended March 31, 2013 and 2012

Attachment B

2013 2012
Cash flows from operating activities:
Receipts from tenants and customers $ 21,611,911 $ 20,712,144
Payments related to employees (9,822,014) (9,553,102)
Payments to vendors (8,197,349) (9,255,816)
Net cash provided by operating activities 3,592,548 1,903,226
Cash flow from investing activities
Purchase of capital assets (5,058,492) (4,130,906)
Purchases of noncurrent investments (4,110) (766,521)
Purchase of short-term investments (3,755,806) (25,672,950)
Sale of short-term investments 5,500,267 28,188,338
Net cash used by investing activities (3,318,141) (2,382,039)
Cash flow from financing activities
Capital contributions for Renwick Ruins Project - 29,113
Net cash provided by financing activities - 29,113
Net increase in cash 274,407 (449,700)
Cash at beginning of year 417,734 867,434
Cash at end of year $ 692,141 $ 417,734
Reconciliation of operating income to net cash
provided by operating activities
Operating income (loss) $ 204,884 $  (720,144)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net
cash provided by all activities:
Depreciation and amortization 3,424,513 3,436,044
Provision for bad debt (5,650)
Changes in:
Receivables (103,010) 121,469
Prepaid expenses (237,893) (711,019)
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 352,210 (77,034)
Compensated absences (526,975) (101,198)
Unearned revenue 142,620 (376,510)
Postemployment benefits other than pension 336,325 337,865
Other liabilities (126) (597)
Net cash provided by operating activities $ 3,592,548 $ 1,903,226

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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ROOSEVELT ISLAND OPERATING CORPORATION
(A Component Unit of the State of New York)

Notes to Financial Statements
March 31, 2013 and 2012

1. Organization

In 1969, the City of New York entered into a lease with the New York State Urban
Development Corporation (UDC) for the development of Roosevelt Island. In May 1981,
pursuant to a memorandum of understanding between UDC and the New York State Division of
Housing and Community Renewal (DHCR), responsibility for Roosevelt Island was assigned to
DHCR. DHCR then assigned all of its rights and responsibilities to Safe Affordable Housing
for Everyone, Inc. (SAHE), a corporation under the direct control of the New York State
Commissioner of Housing.

Effective April 1, 1981, SAHE, a Community Development Corporation (formed under Article
(6) of the Private Housing Finance Law), became responsible for the day-to-day operation of the
services and facilities of Roosevelt Island.

On September 4, 1984, Roosevelt Island Operating Corporation (RIOC) was organized pursuant
to Chapter 899 of the New York Unconsolidated Law as a public benefit corporation. The
responsibility for the operation, security and maintenance of Roosevelt Island was transferred
from SAHE to RIOC on April 1, 1985.

Generally accepted accounting principles require that the reporting entity include (1) the
primary government, (2) organizations for which the primary government is financially
accountable and (3) other organizations for which the nature and significance of their
relationship with the primary government are such that exclusion would cause the reporting
entity’s financial statements to be misleading or incomplete. The criteria provided in
Governmental Accounting Standards Board codification 2100, The Financial Reporting Entity,
have been considered and there are no agencies or entities which should be, but are not,
combined with the financial statements of RIOC. However, RIOC is considered a component
unit of the State of New York.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(a) Basis of Presentation

RIOC was created by the New York State Legislature in 1984 as a public benefit corporation
charged with maintaining, operating, and developing Roosevelt Island. RIOC follows enterprise
fund reporting; accordingly, the financial statements are presented using the economic resources
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Enterprise fund statements offer short
and long-term financial information about the activities of the Corporation. These statements are
presented in a manner similar to a private business. While detailed sub-information is not
presented, separate accounts are maintained for each fund to control and manage transactions
for specific purposes and to demonstrate that RIOC is properly performing its contractual
obligations.
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ROOSEVELT ISLAND OPERATING CORPORATION
(A Component Unit of the State of New York)

Notes to Financial Statements
March 31, 2013 and 2012
(continued)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
(a) Basis of Presentation (continued)

The financial statements of RIOC are prepared in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles (GAAP). RIOC’s reporting entity applies all relevant Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) pronouncements and Accounting Principles Board (APB)
opinions issued after November 30, 1989, unless they conflict with GASB pronouncements.

New Accounting Pronouncement:

For the year ended March 31, 2013, RIOC adopted the provisions of GASB Statement No. 63 —
Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows of Resources, Deferred Inflows of Resources, and Net
Position. This statement amends the net asset reporting requirements in Statement No. 34 —
“Basic Financial Statements — and Management’s Discussion and Analysis-for State and Local
Governments” and other pronouncements by incorporating deferred outflows of resources and
deferred inflows of resources into the definitions of the required components of the residual
measure and by renaming that measure as net position, rather than net assets.

(b) Budgetary Information

During the year ended March 31, 2013, RIOC did not request appropriations for the State of
New York and, as such, a budget was not required to be adopted by law. Accordingly,
budgetary information was not included in the notes to financial statements. However, the
Board did approve an operating budget for management’s internal use, and is included under
supplementary information.

(c) Cash and Cash Equivalents

The following is a summary of cash and cash equivalents as of March 31, 2013 and 2012:

2013 2012
Cash - deposits $ 692,141 $ 417,734
Short-term investments:
Certificates of deposit (CDARS) 21,135,884 20,990,528
Money market accounts 18,912,085 20,801,901
40,047,969 41,792,429
Total cash and cash equivalents $ 40,740,110 $ 42,210,163
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ROOSEVELT ISLAND OPERATING CORPORATION
(A Component Unit of the State of New York)

Notes to Financial Statements
March 31, 2013 and 2012
(continued)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(c) Cash and Cash Equivalents (continued)

RIOC defines cash and cash equivalents as short-term, highly liquid investments with purchased
maturities of three months or less.

The money market accounts are secured by collateral securities held in escrow by JP Morgan
Chase Bank, NA and managed by the National Collateral Management Group with market
values totaling $23,284,101 and $23,616,692 as of March 31, 2013 and March 31, 2012,
respectively.

Investments managed internally consist of certificates of deposit, “CDARS”, a FDIC insured
program administered by Amalgamated Bank, with purchased maturities of twelve months or
less, and interest bearing cash deposit accounts. RIOC is limited under its investment guidelines
primarily to the investment of funds in obligations of the United States of America (United
States Government Securities), the State of New York, high grade Corporate Securities or
certificates of deposit. All cash and funds invested in certificates in any fiduciary bank or trust
company must be secured at all times by United States Government Securities or obligations of
the State of New York, with a market value, combined with any FDIC coverage, at least equal
to the amount of such deposits. Monies held by the Trustees are only secured by obligations
guaranteed by the United States of America.

(d) Noncurrent Investments

This represents funds set aside to satisfy the obligation of the postemployment benefits other
than pension under GASB Statement No. 45 and are invested in collateralized money market
and CDARS.

(e) Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets are reported
on the statement of assets in the accompanying financial statements. Capital assets are defined
by RIOC as assets with an initial individual cost of more than $5,000 and an estimated useful
life in excess of two years. Such assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical
cost if purchased or constructed. The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to
the value of the assets or materially extend assets’ lives are not capitalized.

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed.
Property, plant and equipment of RIOC are depreciated using the straight-line method over the
following estimated useful lives:
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ROOSEVELT ISLAND OPERATING CORPORATION

(A Component Unit of the State of New York)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Notes to Financial Statements
March 31, 2013 and 2012

e) Capital Assets (continued)

(continued)

Seawall (improvement of 1995)
Buildings
Building improvements
Infrastructure
Vehicles

Office

Computer equipment

equipment

Leasehold improvements

() Unearned Revenue

73
40
15
50
10
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Unearned revenue reported in the statement of net position represents amounts collected in
advance for lease-related payments pertaining to subsequent fiscal years. These amounts will be
recognized as income on an annual basis over a period of the remaining fifty-six years on the
ground lease for the City of New York expiring in 2068 under the accrual basis of accounting.

Breakdown is as follows:

Balance at Balance at

Buildings April 01, 2012 Additions Amortization March 31, 2013
Octagon $ 2687361 $ - $ (47,354) $ 2,640,007
Southtown Bldg #1 1,806,666 - (31,836) 1,774,830
Southtown Bldg #2 1,723,950 - (30,378) 1,693,572
Southtown Bldg #3 3,684,234 - (64,920) 3,619,314
Southtown Bldg #4 4,803,418 - (84,642) 4,718,776
Southtown Bldg #5 6,133,911 - (108,087) 6,025,824
Southtown Bldg #6 9,441,305 - (166,367) 9,274,938
Sportspark Field 157,074 163,683 (157,074) 163,683
Total $ 30437919 $ 163,683 $ (690,658) $ 29,910,944

(g) Compensated Absences

It is RIOC’s policy to accrue for unused compensated absences for all full time employees.
Accrued compensated time as of March 31, 2013 and 2012 were $556,151 and $413,532,

respectively.
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ROOSEVELT ISLAND OPERATING CORPORATION
(A Component Unit of the State of New York)

Notes to Financial Statements
March 31, 2013 and 2012
(continued)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(h) Public Purpose Grants

Attachment B

Included in "Other Expenses" are expenditures for public purpose grants totaling $275,000 per
year for the years ended 2013 and 2012. The Roosevelt Island Youth Center was granted
$175,000 each year to help fund operating expenses. The remaining grants of $100,000 are
awarded to various Island-based not-for-profits that must apply each year and require Board

approval.

(i) Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of
the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues, expenses and expenditures

during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

3. Capital Assets

Capital assets for the year ended March 31, 2013 are summarized as follows:

Balance at Bala